
 

 

 
 

RIVERDALE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
CIVIC CENTER - 4600 S. WEBER RIVER DR.  

TUESDAY – MAY 28, 2013 
 

6:00 p.m. –Work Session (City Council Conference Room)  
The purpose of the work session is to review maps, plans, paperwork, etc.  No motions or 
decisions will be considered during this session, which is open to the public. 
 
6:30 p.m. – Planning Commission Meeting (Council Chambers) 

A. Welcome & Roll Call  

B. Open Communications 
(This is an opportunity to address the Planning Commission regarding your concerns or 
ideas.  Please try to limit your comments to three minutes.) 

C. Presentations and Reports 

 1. Community Development Projects Status Report  

D. Consent Items 
 1.  Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 May 14, 2013 Work Session 
   May 14, 2013 Planning Commission   
 
E. Action Items  

1.   a. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on  
proposed amendments to Riverdale City Code 10-16-8A,  
SIGN/ZONE REGULATIONS  
 

b. Consideration of Ordinance 837 amending Riverdale City Code  
            10-16-8A, SIGN/ZONE REGULATIONS  
            Presenters: Randy Daily, Community Development Director  

       Michael Eggett, Community Development Director 
 

  2.       a.   Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on  
            proposed amendments to the Urban Design, Police Department,  
                                    Fire Department and Goals sections of the General Plan  
 
         b.   Consideration of Resolution 2013-20 adopting proposed  
                                    amendments to the Urban Design, Police Department,  
                                       Fire Department and Goals sections of the General Plan            
                                   Presenters: Randy Daily, Community Development Director  
                Michael Eggett, Community Development Director 
 
F.  Discretionary Items 

G.   Adjournment 
 

• The public is invited to attend all Planning Commission meetings. 
• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of special 

accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 394-5541 x 1232. 
• This agenda has been properly posted and a copy provided to local news media. 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: B 
 
SUBJECT: Open Communications 
 
PETITIONER: Anyone Interested 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for any 

interested person to be able to speak 
about any topic. 

 
INFORMATION: Per Governing Body desire, this item will be placed on the agenda 

as a permanent and regular item. 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: C 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development Projects Status Report  

ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Information only.   

INFORMATION: Opportunity for the Community Development Director to present 
any updates or information on follow-up issues to the Planning 
Commission. 

 
 Community Development Report 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS STATUS REPORT 
 

May 23, 2013 

In-N-Out Burger has broken ground and started 
construction of their new restaurant located at 4040 
S. Riverdale Road. They hope to open by the end 
of August. 

EZ Pawn will open a store in the strip mall 
in front of Shopko at 4068 S. Riverdale 
Road. 

Subway is in the process of opening a new lo-
cation at 1078 W. Riverdale Road. They are 
currently remodeling the space. 

Intermountain Healthcare is planning to open 
a billing office in the Brookheaven office 
building at 4933 South 1500 west. 

Gentiva home Health is planning to open an 
office in the Brookheaven office building at 
4933 South 1500 west. 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: D 
 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of meeting minutes from:  

 May 14, 2013 Work Session 
   May 14, 2013 Planning Commission   

 
PETITIONER: City Recorder 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Approve minutes 
 
INFORMATION: See attached minutes as follows:   

 

  May 14, 2013 Work Session 
 
 

    May 14, 2013 Planning Commission   
 
 

 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 



 

Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
Minutes of the Work Session of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held 
Tuesday, May 14, 2013 at 6:03 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber 
River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Brent Ellis, Chairman  

Blair Jones, Vice-Chairman 
David Gailey, Commissioner  
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 
Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
 

Members Excused: Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 

 
Others Present: Randy Daily, Community Development Director; Michael Eggett, 

Community Development Director; Ember Herrick, City Recorder 
and no members of the public.   

 
Chairman Ellis welcomed the Planning Commission members to the work session stating 
for the record that all were in attendance except for Commissioners Hilton and Fleming 
who have asked to be excused.  Community Development Director Michael Eggett said a 
second Subway restaurant is moving into the old Quiznos location at 1078 W. Riverdale 
Road and construction is progressing at the new In-N-Out Burger Restaurant at 4040 S. 
Riverdale Road.  Community Development Director Randy Daily told the Planning 
Commission the new In-N-Out Burger Restaurant is expected to increase traffic in the 
area especially during the first month after the restaurant opens.   
 

Chairman Ellis asked for any meeting minute corrections or changes and none were 
noted.   

Chairman Ellis said the first item on the agenda is an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit for Hokulia Shaved Ice.  Mr. Eggett said the proposed seasonal business conforms 
to Riverdale City Code and will be stationary with the trailer secured up on blocks and 
the bottom of the structure screened.  He said firework stands that wish to locate in this 
same parking lot this summer will need to be located at least 1,000 feet from Hokulia 
Shaved Ice.  Mr. Daily said the business owner has signed an agreement with Best Buy so 
that their temporary employees can use the permanent business’ restroom facilities.     

Chairman Ellis said the next item on the agenda is an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit for a new electrical signs at Brookhaven address 4905 S. 1500 W.  Mr. Daily said 
he checked with UDOT and the State of Utah doesn’t regulate on-premise electronic 
signs unless they are billboards.  According to Mr. Daily, his concern is that there are still 
two or three more buildings shown on the site plan and it is hard to determine what a 
business’ future sign needs will be until the site is developed.  He said the total signage 



 

allowed for this development is 600 square feet and there is already a monument sign at 
the development’s entrance on 1500 West and on the front and back of one of the two 
existing buildings.  Mr. Daily said there has been some confusion between two 
competing sign companies Wasatch Sign and Lighting and Universal Signs and the 
property owner Rob Reynolds, but the request the Planning Commission is considering 
tonight is from Wasatch Sign and Lighting who paid the $50 Conditional Use Permit fee 
to Riverdale City.  He said if representatives from Universal Sign show up for tonight’s 
meeting he will inform them that they are not on tonight’s agenda and need to complete a 
Conditional Use Application and pay the $50 fee to be placed on a future agenda for 
Planning Commission consideration.  Mr. Daily said he is recommending the Planning 
Commission deny this request because an electronic sign in this area is premature in his 
opinion and may not meet the needs of the entire development when it is completed.  Mr. 
Eggett said if a new tenant comes in that has specific sign needs but the development’s 
600 sq ft allotment has been used it could prevent them from locating in this 
development.   

Commissioner Eskelsen asked where the new electronic sign is being proposed and Mr. 
Daily said it would be placed behind the two existing buildings on the west side of the 
property where it would be visible to freeway traffic.  Chairman Ellis said the sign will be 
past the last Riverdale exit so customers would need to take the 31st Street exit in Ogden 
and double back to Riverdale to reach the business park and he asked what the area is 
currently zoned.  Mr. Daily said the land was changed from Landmark to a C-3 Zone 
several years ago.  He said when the RDA West Bench Project Area develops across the 
street the property owner may want an electronic sign on 1500 West to replace the 
current monument sign.  Mr. Daily reminded the Planning Commission that only one 
electronic sign is allowed for a commercial development and said that is why he is 
advising the Planning Commission deny this request until the development is complete. 

Mr. Daily said he and Mr. Eggett met with representatives from Saunders Outdoor 
Advertising to discuss Riverdale’s proposed amendments to regulate electronic billboards 
and Mr. Daily said he is no longer confident Riverdale needs to amend their current off-
premise sign ordinance.   Mr. Daily said he has arranged for a representative from Yesco 
to attend the Planning Commission’s June 11, 2013 meeting to explain the cost and issues 
associated with the electronic billboards Yesco builds in Logan, Utah.  He said the 
electronic signs are very expensive and many advertisers don’t want to share a billboard 
and so he no longer thinks it is likely that many Riverdale billboards will convert to 
electronic signs.  Commissioner Gailey said he is interested to hear what the sign 
companies will say at the June 11th meeting and Chairman Ellis said his only concern is 
insulating residential zones from electronic signs after the public complaints city officials 
and staff has received over light pollution from the Riverside Storage sign on Parker 
Drive.  Mr. Daily said the representative from Saunders said Yesco could fix the 
Riverside Storage sign so that it doesn’t impact the adjacent neighborhood. 

 

 

 



 

There were no additional comments or questions and there being no further business, the 
Planning Commission adjourned at 6:28 p.m. to convene into their regular session. 
 
Approved:  May 28, 2013           Attest:  
 
 
________________________             ________________________ 
Brent Ellis, Chairman                         Ember Herrick, City Recorder  



 

 

 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held Tuesday, 
May 14, 2013 at 6:32 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Brent Ellis, Chairman  

Blair Jones, Vice-Chairman 
David Gailey, Commissioner  
Kathy Eskelsen, Commissioner 
 

Members Excused: Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
Lori Fleming, Commissioner 
Michael Roubinet, Commissioner 

 
Others Present:  Randy Daily, Community Development Director; Michael Eggett, Community 
Development Director; Ember Herrick, City Recorder and two members of the public Carrie 
Cissco and Mel Sweeny.   
 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Chairman Ellis welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record all members of the 
Planning Commission are present except for Commissioners Hilton, Fleming and Roubinet who 
have asked to be excused.   
B.   Open Communications  
Chairman Ellis said there are no members of the public present to speak during the open 
communications portion of the meeting.     
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Projects Status Report  
Community Development Director Michael Eggett said In-N-Out Burger and EZ Pawn are 
moving forward with their stores’ construction and a second Subway Restaurant will open in 
Riverdale in the space formerly occupied by Quiznos.  He asked for any questions or comments 
and there were none.   
 
D.   Consent Items  
April 9, 2013 Work Session 
April 9, 2013 Planning Commission   
April 23, 2013 Work Session 
 
Chairman Ellis asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes and none 
were noted.   

  Motion: Commissioner Eskelsen moved to approve the meeting minutes.  
Commissioner Gailey seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 

 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   May 14, 2013  

E. Action Items 
1. Consideration of Conditional Use Permit Application for Hokulia Shave Ice      

 
Chairman Ellis said the first action item is consideration of a Conditional Use Permit application 
for Hokulia Shave Ice.  Mr. Eggett said the request does comply with Riverdale’s seasonal sales 
requirements and the business owner has agreed to address the requirement that the building be 
stationary and immovable and the bottom be screened so that staff is comfortable recommending 
approval.  He said the business owner has worked out an agreement to allow the employees to 
use the nearby Best Buy store’s restrooms and has complied with Riverdale City statute by 
submitting a signed copy of that agreement.  Mr. Daily said the Planning Commission will need 
to forward their recommendation to the City Council for their consideration. 

Commissioner Gailey asked how secure the structure will be and Mr. Daily said Riverdale’s 
Building Inspector Jeff Woody will inspect the building before it opens to the public to ensure 
that it is safe.  Commissioner Jones asked who will be responsible if this temporary structure 
damages the parking lot and Mr. Daily said there is a refundable cleanup fee as well as language 
in the DDR agreement to insure the parking lot against any damage.  Chairman Ellis asked about 
the building’s placement and if it will impede traffic to the permanent businesses in the complex 
and Mr. Daily said the site plan shows them in the far north east corner where they should not 
impede traffic and will have safe pedestrian access.  Mr. Daily said the Planning Commission 
has discretion on the setbacks for temporary businesses if there are reasonable concerns.  He said 
his department will ensure that Applebees' customers won’t be impacted and customers of this 
temporary seasonal business won’t be able to stop on Riverdale Road and buy snow cones 
without parking and safely exiting their vehicles.  There were no additional comments or 
questions.   

Motion: Commissioner Gailey moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit 
Application for Hokulia Shave Ice forward with a favorable 
recommendation to the City Council.  Commissioner Eskelsen seconded 
the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 
 Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously.   

2. Consideration of Conditional Use Permit at Brook Haven 4905 S. 1500 W. 
Chairman Ellis said the second action item is consideration of a Conditional Use Permit for a 
new electronic sign at the Brookhaven development address 4905 S. 1500 W.  Carrie Cissco with 
Wasatch Sign and Lighting said the property owner is hoping to attract new tenants to his 
development with an electronic sign visible from the I-15 freeway.  She said the road to access 
the development is tucked in behind the Motel 6 entrance on 1500 West and a sign advertising 
all the tenants is expected to help make customers aware of the different businesses on the ridge.   
Ms. Cissco said one electronic sign will prevent the buildings from being cluttered with the logos 
of all the businesses on the exterior of the buildings.  Mr. Daily said the site plan on file with the 
city shows two existing buildings, two proposed buildings and a third future building and staff’s 
concern is that an electronic sign in this location may not benefit the development long term.  He 
said UDOT has been consulted because this electronic sign is proposed along the freeway and a 
representative from UDOT told him that they are only concerned with billboards and do not have 
input with on-premise signs.   



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   May 14, 2013  

Commissioner Gailey asked if this sign will advertise all current and future businesses at this 
location and Ms. Cissco said it will be an electronic message board with the names of the 
different businesses in the complex scrolling across the sign.  She said the double sided sign will 
be visible to north and southbound I-15 freeway traffic and will have a built in dimmer function.  
Commissioner Gailey said this proposed sign is located past the Riverdale exits and Ms. Cissco 
said northbound customers would need to take the Ogden 31st exit and southbound customers 
would need to take the 5600 South Roy exit and backtrack to the business park on 1500 West in 
Riverdale.  Commissioner Jones asked about the exact location of the sign and Mel Sweeney 
owner of Wasatch Signs said it is proposed between and behind the two existing buildings on the 
fence line where it would be visible from the freeway.  According to Mr. Sweeney, the property 
owner Rob Reynolds is hoping this proposed electronic sign will attract tenants to the 
development and he said the landmark sign at the entrance on 1500 West has helped customers 
locate the existing businesses renting space in the development.  Chairman Ellis said there used 
to be a banner sign at the entrance to the development and Mr. Daily said that sign has since been 
removed.  Commissioner Eskelsen asked for clarification about the purpose of this proposed 
electronic sign and expressed doubt that it will be visible to freeway traffic.  Mr. Sweeney said 
the sign will advertise existing tenants and is expected to help bring in new tenants interested in 
leasing office space in the development.   

Chairman Ellis asked about a start date to begin construction on the other three buildings plotted 
on the site plan and Mr. Sweeney said the city would need to ask the property owner.  
Commissioner Jones said he is hesitant to support approval of this Conditional Use Permit 
because of the ambiguity about the future of the development and the fact that if the signage 
allowance is used up now it could negatively impact future development.  Chairman Ellis said 
the majority of the two existing buildings are not rented out and with two or three additional 
proposed buildings there could eventually be more than 20 tenants in this development.  He said 
it will take minutes for an electronic sign to rotate through a list of 20 businesses and the 
property owner needs to consider if this request is premature and not the best usage of the 600 sq 
ft in allowed signage for the development.    

Mr. Daily said the proposed electronic sign is 105 sq ft, the landmark sign is over 50 sq feet and 
Access Home Care has signage on the front and backside of one of the buildings that also figures 
into the total allowed signage for the development.  He said in the next few years as the RDA 
West Bench develops with a $9 million project area budget, a fully animated electronic sign in 
front of this development visible to traffic on 1500 West will generate more business for the 
development than a freeway facing sign.  Mr. Daily said Riverdale ordinance only allows one 
electronic sign so if the Planning Commission approves this electronic reader sign the property 
owner will not be allowed to place a second electronic sign in the front of the development in the 
future.  Mr. Sweeney asked about possible changes to the city’s sign allowance ordinance and a 
variance request to allow additional signage and Mr. Daily said a variance request for additional 
signage would not be possible but the developer could look at amending the Developer’s 
Agreement.   According to Mr. Daily, Riverdale allows three square feet of signage for every 
linear foot of development and this code hasn’t changed during the 35 years he has worked for 
the city.  He advised the property owner not to use up all of his allowed signage which could 
discourage some developments like restaurants with high signage requirements from locating in 
the development.  Mr. Daily said this west bench development will be aided by UDOT’s 
widening of Riverdale Road and additional freeway entrances and exits after construction is 
completed in late 2014.  He encouraged the property owner to sit down with staff and discuss the 
future needs of his development and the possibility of amending the Developer’s Agreement to 



 

Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   4                                                                                   May 14, 2013  

comply with city requirements and then bring an amended Conditional Use Permit back to the 
Planning Commission for consideration.  Chairman Ellis said the Planning Commission and 
Council want to see some good tenants occupy this development.  He thanked the representatives 
from Wasatch Sign and Lighting for attending tonight’s meeting and asked them to communicate 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation that the property owner work with staff to find a 
solution that will work for the development’s long term goals.  There were no additional 
comments or questions.   

Motion: Commissioner Eskelsen moved to deny the Conditional Use Permit at 
Brook Haven 4905 S. 1500 W. recommending the property owner meet 
with staff to discuss a possible amendment to the development agreement 
to address the development’s signage needs.  Commissioner Jones 
seconded the motion.    

 
There was no discussion on the motion.   

 
 Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously.   

Mr. Daily said staff would be happy to meet with the property owner and representatives from 
Wasatch Sign and Lighting in the future to discuss possible amendments to the developer’s 
agreement and allowed signage for this development at 4905 S. 1500 W.   

F.   Discretionary Items 
Chairman Ellis asked for any discretionary items and Commissioner Gailey suggested the 
Planning Commission streamline the approval of consent items in the future with a simple 
motion to approve all consent items.   
 
Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, 

Commissioner Gailey moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Eskelsen 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 
7:12 p.m.   

 
Approved:  May 28, 2013           Attest:  
 
 
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Brent Ellis, Chairman                                   Ember Herrick, City Recorder  
 
 



RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E1 
 
SUBJECT: 1.  a. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on  

proposed amendments to Riverdale City Code 10-16-8A,  
SIGN/ZONE REGULATIONS  
 

    b. Consideration of Ordinance 837 amending Riverdale City Code  
                                       10-16-8A, SIGN/ZONE REGULATIONS 
 
PETITIONER: Community Development       

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Consideration of Ordinance 837  

amending Riverdale City Code  
                                        10-16-8A, SIGN/ZONE 

REGULATIONS 
 
 
 
INFORMATION: Executive Summary  

 Proof of Publication   

 Proposed Amendments to RCC 10-16-8 Sign/Zone Regulations  

  
BACK TO AGENDA 

 















RIVERDALE CITY 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: E2 
 
SUBJECT: 1.  a. Public hearing to receive and consider public comment on  
             proposed amendments to the Urban Design, Police Department,  
                                      Fire Department and Goals sections of the General Plan  
 
                  b.  Consideration of Resolution 2013-20 adopting proposed  
                                      amendments to the Urban Design, Police Department,  
                                         Fire Department and Goals sections of the General Plan   
 
PETITIONER: Community Development       

 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Consideration of Resolution 2013-20 

adopting proposed amendments to the 
Urban Design, Police Department, Fire 
Department and Goals sections of the 
General Plan 

 
 
INFORMATION: Executive Summary  

 Proof of Publication   

 Proposed Amendments to General Plan Urban Design Section  

 Proposed Amendments to General Plan Police Department Section 

   Proposed Amendments to General Plan Fire Department Section 

   Proposed Amendments to General Plan Goals Section  

  
BACK TO AGENDA 

 



































RIVERDALE CITY  
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

May 28, 2013 
 

AGENDA ITEM: F1 
 
SUBJECT: Discretionary Items 
  
PETITIONER: Elected, Appointed, and Staff 
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Open agenda item provided for 

comments or discussion on 
discretionary items. 

 
 

BACK TO AGENDA 
 
 
 




